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GARLEE DRYEi . . , and came to the dedication of the new union building, would 

have been '72 . But I cannot answer t h a t . Maybe Gary could give you more of 

tha t background, because he was ac tua l ly working r igh t there in the power 

d iv i s ion , Gary was in the maintenance end of i t , r a the r than in the switchboard 

operation end, 

Roisemarie Hester« What do you think i t was l ike for him, t rying to 

encourage other people to join the union? What can you imagine h i s experience 

was l ike? Did he have a l o t of obstacles in h i s way? 

DRYEi Not r e a l l y . I t had to be done on a quiet so r t of th ing, you know. 

Really, when you get t o thinking about i t , you see the connection, because 

these fellows on there who were power d ivis ion people, every one had a 

telephone connection, one with the o ther . Any time there was a load dispatch, 

o r anything changed, well , they were on the phone constantly. They are today; 

part of i t ' s done by radio these days r a the r than telephone, but they s t i l l 

r e ly primarily on tha t ac tual telephone conversation. But evidently there 

was discussion between them, and then the people who came along l a t e r who 

don ' t show there or in the presidents or anything e l s e . Somebody between 

Dean Culver and 0, B, Lackey. . . . Dean worked one sh i f t and 0. B. another, 

as a switchboard operator, but Dean d i d n ' t come here t i l l sometime a f t e r '34 . 

He went to work about the same year I d id . There had to be a contact and 

conversation between them. Maybe a t company expense; I don ' t know. I Chuckle J 

Who knows? I do not know 0 . B, Lackey's background. I t was few people tha t 

r e a l l y understood 0. B. as a person. He was very quie t , but he had a dedicat ion. 

Of course, there was another s tory behind 0. B. Lackey, and l iv ing next door 

I could understand what happened t he r e . He met a g i r l in Pit tsburgh in 

negot ia t ions , and t h a t ' s why h i s second term was so shor t . He came down here 

and qui t and packed h i s suitcase and moved to Pi t tsburgh. That 's the smartest 

move he ever made. 
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DRYE 2 

RHt What did he do up in Pittsburgh? 

DRYEi He went to work in the Youngstown plant of United. States S tee l . 

He married a g i r l named Gilmolta(?) down the re , a he l l of a nice person. 

But I would never t e l l h i s wife so . She t r i e d to pick me, my. . , , 

Every time I went in the re , they'd e i t h e r come in and have dinner or breakfast 

or something, j u s t whatever he was working a t the time. But the f i r s t time I 

went in to Pi t tsburgh, I met h i s wife, and I d i d n ' t blame him one b i t . And 

I was a whole l o t younger than I am now, I s t i l l don ' t blame him one b i t . 

He never l o s t contact with h i s k ids . In fac t , he and the g i r l he married 

supported the k ids . But t h i s i s another h i s to ry . A l o t of people look 

down t h e i r nose a t 0 . B, today, because you learn something in the years 

about human nature , but you don ' t r e a l l y get down to inner fee l ings . Because 

in t h i s kind, of a thing you've got to have a hard, she l l tha t you pul l around 

you every once in a while, because they j u s t tear you a l l t o pieces. Those 

are disgruntled people, obviously, and you've got t o l i s t e n t o the complaints 

and the g r ipes . I t takes a d i f fe ren t type of person, r e a l l y . The only thing 

I can do i s analyze mine, and I run against a brick wal l , 

RHi (Laughter] 

DRYEi Why did I spend the years tha t I should have been here t rying t o , 

with my boys? Why did I give eight years of ac tua l ly more time away from 

home, even out of town, than I was ac tua l ly home? But they've understood since 

they grew up why I did i t , 

RHi What were you doing? 

DRYE i I worked eight hours a day in the plant and then did the loca l 

union work and handled, grievances and tha t so r t of thing afterwards. I 

couldn ' t handle the grievances during work hours. The actual grievance 

meetings themselves, I handled during the work hours and off the job. Of 
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course, I spent about half the time on the actual work and doing my job. 

But then i f you had to get a case ready for a r b i t r a t i o n , the other a c t i v i t i e s 

you get involved i n , meeting with your own people, committeemen or whatever, 

and tha t gets involved. That was done a f t e r , because we d i d n ' t have the money 

in the ear ly days, even in the f i f t i e s , to pay l o s t time and wages. I t ' s 

been since about '60 tha t you could r ea l ly say tha t the man could take off 

and do the necessary, and the union would pay for h i s l o s t t ime. 

RHt You said something about going around the s t a t e . 

DRYE* That was a f t e r I resigned in '59 . I was active in tha t end of i t . 

The Steel Workers started, in the merger with the A F of L-GIO, and I was the 

f i r s t vice president of the A F of L-CIO and helped bring about the merger. 

Served on the merger committee and. drafted some of the language, implemented 

some of the language tha t came down from the A F of L-GIO office in Washington, 

That took a l o t of time away from home. Then I ac tua l ly t rave l led in the 

s t a t e , and I 've been in every loca l union in the s t a t e except two, in '59 

and '60, I t ' s a he l l of a big s t a t e when you get dr iving one end to the other , 

[Chuckle I Meet with one group tonight and another group tomorrow night . I t ' s 

big. But they was in the p o l i t i c a l end, along with . . , . One of the 

other considerations, the reason I came on back in to the plant and. d i d n ' t 

go out to Texas—I could have gone in to a s ta f f job in Texas when one of 

the plants was being organized there , as an active organizer—I wasn't cut out ; 

I'm cut out more administrator . I j u s t d i d n ' t see i t , not and pick up the 

family and move from North Carolina to Texas. The pay wasn't a l l t ha t grea t , 

and i t would have been on a temporary bas i s , and I might have had to pay 

myself back in North Carolina. I ' d had enough t r a ve l l i ng . Suitcase l iv ing 

i s wonderful i f you're s ing le , maybe, but i t gets tiresome a f t e r a while. 

So I came on back in t h i s plant and got involved in t h i s other work there . 
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RH: Tell me about what was involved during your administration in the 

union. 

DRYEi The first big thing that hit me right square in the head was the 

integration issue. In fact [chuckleJ, it was one of the most nerve-wracking 

periods, I guess. I had to have a hard head and. a thick hide to put up with 

it, because I was castigated not only by the rank and file—they were 100 

percent membership then and still are—but by management and everybody 

except my wife, and she was the one person that kind of summed it up for me, 

conversation all night long. "But if you can't live with yourself, I can't 

live with you." And that happened on October 28, 1953, when we got the first 

application from a black for an active craneman, which was a so-called white 

job. I was in the process then of changing the lines of progression, although 

for all intents and purposes, under federal law at that point they were null 

and. void anyway. You had to eliminate all that, and it was just restructuring 

the whole line of progression under your contract and your wage structure. 

And I went to battle for those boys, and boy, it was a rough time. I had 

more than one meeting with people in the plant. One time I walked in after 

they called for a meeting in the pot room department, and there was thirty-eight 

people, and that was about all that were off. And at fifteen minutes till eight 

that night, there was one man left and me. 

RHi And these were . . . 

DRYEi These were whites, every single one of them. 

RH* Whites who were encouraging you not to do this. 

DRYE* Threatening to pull out and withdraw from the union. And maybe I 

outlasted them, or maybe I'm too hard-headed to give in to them, but I didn't. 

Because I still believe that the Steel Workers' philosophy, and. it went before 

1953 here. . . . And I stuck to my guns. Although the Steel Workers sent a 
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man down here, and he j u s t l ived with Joe Kirk for about seven weeks out t he re . 

Because tha t was j u s t before; i f i t had blown, why, they'd have se t up an 

administrator . They had the r i gh t under the cons t i tu t ion . 

RH: So the Steel Workers knew tha t you were having t h i s problem here, 

and they sent down a . . . 

DRYE: They knew i t , and they d i d n ' t know whether I was capable of 

handling i t , because I hadn ' t been president but about a year, and I was 

learning. I burned a l o t of midnight o i l in studying and ge t t ing an education 

myself. I d i d n ' t have tha t kind of education, to stand and argue with a lawyer 

over here across the bargaining t ab l e . And I did a l o t of studying. I got an 

education tha t you couldn' t get anywhere e l s e . There's no school and 

univers i ty in t h i s s t a t e tha t you give you the education I got . Of course, I went to 

school(?) taking extension courses, and then I went to summer i n s t i t u t e s about 

four years in a row. 

RH* How did you f i na l l y encourage the people in the union not to qu i t , 

t ha t i t would be a l l r igh t once blacks were in sk i l l ed posit ions? 

DRYE* You know, I 've wished many a time I had had a tape recorder going 

for what I ac tua l ly to ld those people. You had to butt heads. "This i s 

what 's best for the loca l union. I f you t e a r yourself, we're going to have 

to go back and. s t a r t off again. You are the one i t ' s going to hur t , when 

the f ina l analysis comes. They're working with you. What's so unfair 

about them get t ing the same benefits you're get t ing?" Under the wage 

s t ruc tu re , there were comparative-rate jobs , but there was no way you could 

get in to them without going through cer ta in other . , . . The laborer and 

the l e s se r sk i l l ed jobs, the d i r t y jobs . I t was j u s t s e l l ing the people on 

what we believed, i n , r e a l l y . And tha t old. " f a i r day ' s work for a f a i r day ' s 

pay" i s s t i l l p re t ty good for the Steel Workers. Of course, now, t h a t ' s 

changed in the l a s t seven or e ight years . You're going to get the people who 
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believe tha t the company owes them a l i v ing the f i r s t day they h i re them. 

That f i t s in with some other his tory of my bel ie fs about what the younger 

generation might. . . . And I don ' t agree with i t , because I d i d n ' t grow up 

tha t way. But i t was a dedicat ion, and I r e c a l l the time I took the oath of 

obligation for president . And I had. two documents in my hand. One was the 

contract , and. the other was the cons t i tu t ion . The const i tut ionsbf the Steel 
i 

Workers since 1946 have had no discrimination because of race , creed, or color , 

period. And. I believed i t , and I s t i l l do . Of course, I think maybe some 

things have maybe softened, me a l i t t l e b i t in recent years , in the recent pas t , 

but I went through some things in '46 tha t I can ' t forget . 

RH: What were those things? 

DRYE: At tha t time we were making a base of Guam, and I dived in a foxhole 

on top of a black boy. Him a Marine, and I was non-combat, supposedly. 

We spent three days in tha t foxhole, and then you begin to think about your 

own a t t i t u d e s about. . . . This goes back in my l i f e to my grandfather, I 

think, h i s philosophy about people. He had a great philosophy* i f you had 

anything to say about your neighbor, sweep off your own doorstep before you 

d id . At the time he told me I d i d n ' t know what i t meant, but t h i s i s par t 

of t ha t bel ief in the f a i r shake for your fellow man, be he black, white, o r 

in between. And. i t took tha t long, from the time I was twelve t i l l I was 

th i r ty- two, to r e a l l y dawn on me what tha t philosophy t o t a l was. And. Dad 

was a whole l o t t ha t way, and Mother p re t ty much emphatically. She wouldn't 

l e t you t a lk about anybody. "If you can ' t help them, don ' t say anything or 

don ' t do anything," This i s the background. I think you find t h i s in every 

t rue terminology of trade un ion is t . Now others get in to i t for some other 

reason, power and. the p res t ige . There's no power, and t h e r e ' s no p res t ige . 

You're going to be degraded and downgraded and talked about and talked to your 
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face, and people are going to ca l l you everything in the book, but you've 

got to accept i t . Because he has a hang-up about something, and you've got 

to get to i t , l i s t e n him out , and then t r y to show him where h e ' s wrong, 

and i t ' s hard to do. And t h i s ge ts involved, 

RH* By the time you resigned in May, 1959, what progress do you think 

had been made in the union in terms of blacks in sk i l l ed posi t ions and. in 

res t ruc tur ing . . . 

DRYE* The other thing tha t took place was when Emmett Akridge. • . • And 

t h i s gets involved, in some na t iona l - leve l p o l i t i c s , I was vice president a t 

the time Emmett Akridge went on the s ta f f . He went on in ' 5 1 , but I served. . . . 

He says he s t i l l had the t i t l e of president when I was vice pres ident ; I 

was carrying an act ing president . He d i d n ' t ac tua l ly resign from the 

presidency u n t i l September of '52 , but there was about seventeen months there 

t ha t I was ac tua l ly performing the du t ies of president and vice pres ident . 

I t was a hang-up now, I d i d n ' t l i ke i t ; I think I wished I had a vice 

president under me to help me. Because God. knows I needed help r i g h t then. 

That 's why Gary became, , . . He was the brains of the organization. He 

had one of the sharpest brains I know about. Everything except leadership . 

He j u s t couldn ' t push ahead, and take obl igat ion. He was too 

much concerned about what effect i t ' l l have on me. Or you can completely forget 

what your. . . . Or you can get your brains beat i n . But you've got t o be 

ready t o come out tomorrow and do i t again. But t h a t period, by the time 

Burnett ran against me in the e lec t ion of '54 in June, I beat the pants off 

of him. And. t h i s , I think, was the key, because the membership, black and 

white, wasn't t ha t great d i f ferences . I f every black man over there voted 

for me—and I did not get a l l the black votes—then i t could have only been 

j u s t a l i t t l e over two to one. But I beat him almost four to one. Call 

i t s e l f -g ra t i f i ca t ion i f you want t o . This showed me t ha t people had bought 

L 
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the philosophy, a resignation that this is a fact of life and I've got to 

learn to live with it. And that was the key to the break point, and from 

that day to this, well, just . . . 

RH* Because you had been campaigning that you needed this restructuring, 

and that the union had to allow blacks . . . 

DRYE: If you understood the constitution of the steel Workers, today 

it has a clause in it that people on the international payroll, international 

representatives, cannot run for local union office, period. And that's 

because I (chuckleJ spent my money and went to Pittsburgh,and. I took on 

the whole works up there. It had to come out. And I submitted the constitution 

change, and it was adopted. So this history went down through the Steel Workers. 

But I beat the pants off the international rep. He had no business running. 

Once he went on the international payroll, he was out of it. The only way he 

could do it was resign his job there and come back in the plant and go to work. 

The turning point took place in about ninety days. I had meeting after meeting 

after meeting with the rank and file. Whatever group in any department wanted 

a meeting, they could see me at four o'clock. Just don't double up two 

departments. And we had union meeting after union meeting. But I think the 

turning point took place within a year. It took about that long for people 

to accept the fact that it was going to take place anyway. They weighed what 

they stood to lose to keep on fighting, and. what they stood to gain by 

accepting it. Because it had. been basic Steel Worker philosophy and gospel, 

if you want to call it that, for years before. 

RH; How did Alcoa buy it? How did they start to change their hiring 

practices and their promotion practices and their training practices in 

response to what you decided in the end? 

DRYE; From October until December, we restructured every single line of 
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progression, which i s top to bottom, with no reference, , . . The only thing 

was department sen ior i ty , and t h a t ' s s t i l l promotion, except in cer ta in cases 

i t rever t s to company sen ior i ty . Say, i f you find two people with the 

exact department sen ior i ty from promotions within the department. You 

s t i l l have tha t breakdown between departments. You don ' t care under the 

contract , department sen ior i ty from one department t o the o ther ; i t becomes 

company sen io r i ty . But within a department, i t ' s s t i l l . . . . From 1954, 

November 27 or 28, i t was top to bottom, black or white; i t d i d n ' t make 

any difference. Only i f your qual i f icat ions failed t o operate(?) , why. . . . 

And t h i s company was giving a l i t t l e t e s t , and t ha t got agains t the law, 

and I had to write tha t out of i t , too, the following spring, about four 

/
else 
can g ive . You have t o give the 

same to everybody. Of course, they've gotten out of hand, in my opinion now. 

With some of them, you can ' t give t e s t s . The h e l l you c a n ' t . What kind of 

people do you expect to get? Well, t h a t ' s some of the | chuckle j l a t e s t rul ings 

you've gotten out of the Jus t ice Department, 

RH; Oh, you mean Affirmative Action, 

DRYE: Yes, This i s fool ish . Which t i ed indus t ry ' s hands. I don ' t 

agree with a l o t of things tha t come through. They have harmed management; 

they've harmed, people. I don ' t think a man, i f i t ' s very obvious t h a t h e ' s 

incapable even of probably one-tenth of the a b i l i t y t o perform a job. . . . 

Go out there and. expose him, i t ' s going to wreck him mentally, physical ly, 

and everything. But I s t i l l think he'd be i n s i s t i n g , and. i f he wants to 

cut h i s own head, off and. expose himself to t h a t , f ine , go ahead. But you 

can ' t get involved in t e s t ing people out of promotions. But from '54 on, 

i t was wide open. I t s t i l l i s . 

RHi And you think now tha t blacks, since the l a t e f i f t i e s , have had . . . 

DRYE: Gary thought of t h a t . In June of l a s t year, '79 , you had your 
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f i r s t black president of t h i s loca l union. Now t h a t ' s a long t ime. Now why, 

I do not know. I t d i d n ' t happen everywhere e l s e . 

RH; Why i t ' s taken so long, or why i t ' s happened here? 

DRYE; Why i t took so long. Not tha t i t happened, here ; I expected i t . 

But I expected i t longer than. . . . I think the blacks themselves recognized 

tha t they d i d n ' t have a r ea l leader . And t h i s i s not , in my own opinion, a 

r ea l strong leader . He's the strongest t h a t ' s been on the scene in quite a 

few years . The one strong man they had in the fo r t i e s was electrocuted in 

1952 or ' 53 . Moving a te lev is ion a e r i a l , and. l e t i t f a l l on a 2,300-volt 

l i n e . I t electrocuted him and h i s son. Now he was an i n t e l l i g e n t black, 

and. he would have gone somewhere, and within the Steel Workers. He wouldn't 

have stayed in t h i s loca l long, because he had tha t much up here . Plain old. 

common sense. He d i d n ' t have a l l tha t education, but he had. plain old common 

sense dealing with people, black and. white. He was well l iked by everybody 

in the p lan t . And i t was unfortunate. I t was j u s t one of those th ings . 

But i t took t ha t much longer. They recognized, I th ink. . . . Well, within 

the trade union movement, t h e r e ' s been a d i f ferent approach to taking over 

leadership . Where i t ' s been forceful in other d i r ec t i ons , in the union 

movements they d i d n ' t want to rock the boat. In other words, break up a 

union or s p l i t up a union. They eased themselves in to i t . Res t ra in t , i f 

you want to c a l l i t t h a t . And t h i s i s my opinion about t h a t . And I 've seen 

i t o ther places, but espec ia l ly i n t h i s l o c a l . They had the vote, on the 

basis of black and white, u n t i l about s ix years ago. 

RH: What do you mean,"they had. the vote"? 

DRYE* The black membership was f i f t y - s i x percent s i x years ago. And 

tha t was the h i r ing pract ice of Alcoa in the ear ly days. When they were 

here , there was no way to get r i d of them. Only t i l l you h i re more black and more 
white to 
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bring tha t figure down. But i t ' s s t i l l p re t ty close to even. 

RH: A h i r ing pract ice of Alcoa's was not to allow there t o be more 

blacks, or . . . 

DRYE* Well, frankly, in the ear ly days of ge t t ing people t o work in 

the pot room, you had to shanghai them. Actually there was one man tha t ran 

four t ax i s back and. forth to South Carolina, Georgia, wherever he could 

shanghai, and t h a t ' s the only terminology you can use . You haul them up here ; 

they work one s h i f t , and they'd be gone. About one out of a dozen. . . . 

I don ' t know what the f igures would, be. I 've asked the question, and I always 

got , "What the h e l l . You can ' t ask t h a t , " Well, I can ask i t . You may not 

answer i t , 

RH* I ' d ask tha t question, too . They say the same thing to me. [Laughter 

DRYE: ["Laughter] I don ' t think i t was a planned so r t of thing from 

Alcoa's viewpoint, but jus t a fact of l i f e . People wouldn't work i t . 

I t was plain hard labor . Why, a rock p i le would have been be t t e r , because 

you could stop and breathe once in a while. But not in tha t pot room in 

the ea r ly days; there was no such thing. You had to get who you could. 

RH* Right. 

DRYE* And t h a t ' s the reason for the s t a t i s t i c s , 

RH* Yes, I ' ve heard, about a sher i f f named Kid Heavy. Have you ever heard 

of him? He was one of those shanghai people, and when the people would get 

back onto ra i l road cars and get out to Salisbury, he 'd hear about them having 

got on the t r a i n . He'd, be standing there with h i s gun, t e l l i n g them to get 

back on the t r a i n and go back, 

DRYE* I t ' s a unique sor t of th ing. Those are perhaps the , . . . And I 

have my own opinion about the merger, and I wouldn't want tha t to be in a 

document or anything e l s e , about the merger, I think we've made some 
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mistakes by. . . . It's my opinion; it's a strong opinion. I was involved 

in the merger. I was also involved in kicking the Teamsters out of the CIO 

after the merger. And it amazes me, what was wrong with the thinking, that 

of all the international unions that have organized in this locality, and 

nationwide, why has the Teamsters continued, to grow in membership and the 

Steel Workers, for one example, have declined in the total number of members? 

RH: Why is that? 

DRYE* The rank and f i l e d i d n ' t care what Jimmy Hoffa d id ; he was del iver ing 

the goods to them. And i f you want to get an argument going, even today, don ' t 

say anything detrimental to Jimmy Hoffa. Oh, I had my opinions about Jimmy 

Hoffa, too, now. He was a rough, tough f igh te r . He had to be, in the trucking 

industry. Maybe they ' re get t ing a l i t t l e more mellow these days; I don ' t know. 

But I think the union movement overal l hurt i t s e l f by kicking the Teamsters out . 

They should have accepted them and l e f t them in the merger—accepted them in 

the merger—and then clean house. See, we got the car t in front of the horse, 

frankly, and t h a t ' s my opinion. But I f a i l to understand [whyj for the ten 

years a f t e r merger and then the expulsion of the Teamsters, they increased 

t h e i r membership and s t i l l are doing i t . 

RH: By 1959, when you had resigned, how had the res t ruc tur ing of the 

l ines of progression been accepted by Alcoa? How had i t been implemented? 

What changes could you see in tha t seven-year period of your administrat ion, 

in terms of the s i tua t ion for blacks a t Alcoa? 

DRYE; We had s tar ted In '54 a wage-job study which s lot ted every job, 

an evaluation system. The GWS manual—the Steel Workers Evaluations Manual— 

evaluated and factor-weighed every job in the p lan t . We came up with our 

own version, which Alcoa ins is ted on. We wanted the GWS manual. And i t cost 

them, in the f ina l ana lys i s , two cents an hour more in every job in the industry 
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than the Steel Manual would have given them. They came up with t h e i r own 

manual. I t ' s agreeable with us . I t bunched, the top jobs and low jobs too 

close together. But we had every job in the plant evaluated, and t h i s 

document was agreed t o , ready for s ignature , and somehow or other Alcoa got 

afraid of t h i s very t h i n g ; I'm cer ta in of i t . They turned away from t h a t , 

because i t would have put blades in craf t jobs. And then the further order 

in '64 came down, and they said you were going to put them in i t or e l s e . 

And then Alcoa got busy and implemented an almost ident ica l to the job 

descr ip t ion, the whole manual setup, tha t we'd agreed to without s ignature , 

in '64. And even a t t ha t point i t was only token in c ra f t s jobs; they s t i l l 

would not break down the color l i n e . Well, in 1968 the roof f e l l i n , and 

then the door was open without bar. But i t took a l l those years to ever break 

i t down, r e a l l y . The Jus t ice Department in 1972 ordered t h i s one-on-one 

implementation, and the Steel Workers agreed to i t . And t h i s d i d n ' t create 

but ju s t a kind of a r i p p l e . There was about one man in the whole mechanical 

department of eighty, created quite a racket and threatened lawsui ts , but 

he'd have had the Steel Workers and Alcoa t o . . . . [chuckle^ And I think 

he jus t gave up. And he was already in the apprentice program. And then 

along with tha t implementation agreement was a . . . 

BEGIN TAPE I SIDE II 
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DRYE* To me i t was a highl ight for t h i s area of the country 

and for the s t e e l workers, too . In 1949 there was a ten-week s t r i k e here . 

George Holt* Here? 

DRYE* Here in t h i s Bad i n . Unheard of [chucklej in 1949, s t r i ke s of 

any kind. There j u s t wasn't tha t many loca l unions. And. you have to 

remember tha t even a t the peak of labor unions numerically in North Carolina, 

i t was not quite twelve percent. They gave us c red i t for twelve percent, 

but the t rue figure was probably eight percent. This i s not for publication— 

we're not c lear , see—but t h a t ' s about what the numerical numbers were. 

But a f t e r tha t s t r i k e , i t established two th ings , and I always term them 

as one* pensions and insurance. Now t h i s i s the forerunner of your companies 

industry-wide in the county picking up some type of insurance, and they s t i l l 

have a so-called pension plan. But what I called a comprehensive pension plan. 

And I'm s i t t i n g back here today, and I r e c a l l very vividly people, even 

people in Badin, people tha t were probably members of the loca l union —they 

were in the minority, thank goodness—who could not see a l l the wages we 

l o s t . Whatever wages I l o s t , I got i t a l l back the f i r s t three months and 

two years ago when I r e t i r e d , and I'm reaping the benefi ts of i t today. 
,been 

Besides a l l of the insurance, t h e r e ' s / my family ra i sed . There i s no way 

t o measure the benefit t o the people, not only union members but sa lary 

people. They're benefiting every time we negot ia te . They did in tha t case. 

RH* This ten-week s t r i ke in 1949 was j u s t here a t Badin, j u s t a t t h i s 

local? 

DRYE* I t was industry-wide. See, we had been in the Steel Workers for 

five years . I t was Alcoa, and the s t r i k e s d i d n ' t take place simultaneously 

as fa r as beginning, but they ended pre t ty much. But Alcoa, i f my 

recol lec t ion of the true fac ts a t tha t point , caved in f i r s t . And in Alcoa 

as an industry, t h i s has been one of t h e i r good concepts, I think, t h a t they 
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always have been, since we started negotiating contracts, leaned toward 

benefits; rather than give you money across the board, taking benefits. 

And this is a pretty good concept, by the way, in these days of high taxes. 

[Chucklej It's a very good thing. 

RH* To go back to what you were saying before about why the union was 

formed in the early days, during the thirties. 

DRYE* I think there was two things, and I don't want to put too much 

credence on the first instance. I carried S. A. Gopp's, who was works manager, 

clubs around the golf course more than one time. Fifty cents, and ten-cent 

tips. Always a ten-cent tip. Was a lot of money. But that's about 

five miles of walking, the way he played, the game. But somehow the people 

in Badin, even from 1938 on, and he left here probably in '45 to '48, 

r 1 
somewhere along. . . . But the father-son, th is big fami ly?] . . . . Well, 

he turned. He probably made a mistake when i t , , . . But that kind of 

statement from anybody in management gets around fast , 

RH: What did he say? 
DRYE* He said Badin was wonderful. I t was a big, happy family and 

didn ' t need anybody. But he didn' t realize there was a lo t of unhappy 

people out there in the plant. He was probably depending on the lower-echelon 

management, 

RH* Why were they unhappy? 

DRYE* General working conditions. Low recognition of the true worth 

of the people. The people in Badin—perhaps i t ' s a localized thing, and 

perhaps i t ' s not; I don't know, I 've never been able to analyze the Tar Heel, 

the North Carolinian—they're a prideful people, and they take pride in their 

work. And that , I think, i s the key to the fact that th is Badin plant i s 

s t i l l here, the modern version of i960, when i t s tarted. Because Alcoa 

recognized that i f there was something to be tried out, some new tes t 
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equipment, the new techniques, they always came t o Badin to t e s t i t . 

I t might be taken somewhere e lse and b u i l t . But I think i t ' s pride in work; 

t h e r e ' s pride in the job well done. This i s an old c l i che-sor t of a th ing, 

but i t ' s a basic fact in the type of people. 

RH: Are you saying tha t S. A. Gopp so r t of undermined t h i s pride tha t 

people had i n t h e i r work? 

DRYE* No, I think he should have recognized i t . He d i d n ' t recognize i t . 

He'd been here too many years. Perhaps he was ge t t ing on up in years . I t 

was probably nearly seven years ago, maybe, when he died. When I was a 

young boy I thought he was an old man then, but he wasn't r e a l l y . Because 

I have i t brought home more every day as I get o lder . I'm no spring 

chicken e i t h e r . But t h a t , and I give Alcoa management c red i t for not having 

common sense, not having t h e i r pulse on the rank-and-fi le a t t i t u d e . And 

Alcoa r e a l l y bu i l t t h i s loca l union. They made a bad move a t a bad time. 

I t was p r io r to the time tha t we went in to the Steel Workers, t rying to get 

a loca l union formed. We were recognized, and they were dealing with the 

old Aluminum Workers In ternat ional union. There are s t i l l some. . . . 

I t ' s never been r e a l l y e f fec t ive . And they rode the s t e e l workers' 

s h i r t t a l l s as far as benefi ts every. . . . Jus t a l i t t l e behind. You know, 

enough to keep them out of the S t ee l Workers. And frankly I think they, 

in the past ten years , would have ra the r had them a l l in the Steel 

Workers and negotiate everybody. Three loca l s of the United Automobile 

Workers came in , and they keep themselves busy negotiat ing tha t way. 

That 's not good philosophy from the national Chamber of Commerce viewpoint. 

They'd ra ther pick you off one a t a time than t r y to take you on a l l together, 

co l l ec t ive ly . And a t t ha t point , I r e c a l l very vividly the night t ha t i t 

happened. I t was in 1939, somewhere in tha t v i c i n i t y . They were t ry ing to 
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get people to join the union. I t was to go out and beat the bushes, and then you 

have to go out and hand-collect dues. I t ' s hand-to-mouth existence, because 

we had to go out in the plant and take up a collection to send somebody to 

negotiate a contract. No real income. And we had a union meeting one night, 

one of those foot-stomping, organizing sort of a thing, although Dean Culver 

was by no means a foot-stomper nor a rabble-rouser type. He was very quiet, 

but he believed in th is union with complete dedication. We'd go down that 

night and meet the eleven o'clock crew going in and coming off. Had a l i t t l e 

ten-cent baseball bat with a placard on i t , "Join Or Else". Then Alcoa 

proceeded to lock up. . . . That figure i s cloudy, because the record shows 

i t was sixty-nine, but there didn' t actually but sixty-three get in the j a i l . 

They filled the County Ja i l up and tried to get them to go home so they could 

bring the rest of us in. They just picked off the leaders, and just peons 

didn' t make any difference. Well, that was a mistake, because for the next 

probably th i r ty days as many people came to the union and joined 

the union as were members at the time i t happened. The people really locked 

up in the j a i l , they tried to turn them out on recognition bond.. They 

would have no part of i t . They stayed in t i l l next morning, i t got time 

to go to work. They a l l got turned out. That was the 

breaking point i n i t i a l l y , in my opinion, in Badin. I 've said i t to management 

through the years. Because people recognized then just what the management 

in the Badin plant really basically thought of them. ..^ / Ihey charged 

them with trespassing. That's s t i l l technical to me, because [chuckle^ 

the Southern Railway's tracks came in here. They never have established 

in my mind that that was the border— the plant was within fifty feet of 

the center of the railroad tracks—that somebody else owned that property. But 

that was the trigger, in my opinion, that built the, , , . Because the 
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people who were doubters about what the union could do for them changed 

a t tha t point . Then in 1940 i t was s t i l l p re t ty c lose . We had the 

representat ion e l ec t ion . I t wasn't the NLRB then; i t was under the Wagner 

Act, wasn't i t ? The e lec t ion was held, and i t was only by a majority of 

eleven votes . So [chuckle] had they played i t cool and j u s t l e t us parade 

tha t n ight , in my opinion, frankly, I believe the union would have died for 

t ha t period. How many years i t would have took to react iva te i t , o r some 

things l a t e r come along, but i t went into a d i f fe ren t atmosphere and a 

d i f fe ren t l ine of thought by the people who l ived in Badin a t t ha t point . 

And i t wasn't too much time a f t e r then—they could go t o the record and d ig 

i t a l l out—that the representat ion e lec t ion took place. I guess the good. 

Lord has looked a f t e r people in t h i s v i c i n i t y , especia l ly in Badin, where 

t h e r e ' s been a kind of a c lose-kni t th ing . People in Albemarle resent us 

because we're making the high wages, and t h a t ' s understandable—we've 

accepted that—but they had the same opportunity tha t people in Badin had. 

GH: Why did they resent you in Albemarle? 

DRYE* Because we were making. . . . Well, the people tha t are working 

in tha t plant now are probably making three times what you are over in the 

mi l l s , in the comparative wages. Benefits, why, they don ' t even know what 

they a re . Oh, they have insurance and some of t ha t so r t of th ing . 

RH: Do they see t ha t t h a t ' s something t h a t the union has brought t o 

workers a t Alcoa, o r do they focus tha t resentment j u s t a t Alcoa? 

DRYE* I t ' s not pa r t i cu la r ly a t workers, but the fact tha t the wage 

s t ructure i s so much higher. And t h i s i s t rue of the management in the 

mi l l s in Albemarle. I know tha t the so-called executives there can ' t touch 

in wages the h i r e - in r a t e in t h i s plant two years ago. Their s a l a r i e s do 

not come to i t , I mean night supervisors and these so-cal led supervisors . 
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I t ' s hard to pinpoint , but there i s a resentment. That i s speaking of in 

the s i x t i e s , and the '65 to ' 7 5 . L e t ' s face i t . The younger generation i s 

coming along here , another generation, who have a d i f fe ren t concept. 

They're not afraid to take a chance. I ' ve learned tha t with being with my 

own k ids . My daughter came along, and she'd do th ings . She'd, take off on 

a 200-mile t r i p , and her mother would, spin l i ke a top, and. the boys wouldn't 

even have attempted i t when they were coming up. Jus t in those years . 

There i s a d i f fe ren t . . . . I t ' s envying r a the r than resentment. Maybe t h a t ' s a be t t e r 

word. Because wages in Badin, compared to anything in the s ta te—not j u s t 

in Stanly County, but anything in the s tate—has been r igh t up a t the top . 

I t has not been top a l l the t ime, but we were r i g h t up there nudging them. 

That 's in the railroad, unions and everything e l s e , t ha t ' ve been in existence 

for a hundred years . But t h a t ' s the one th ing . I s t a r t ed to say I guess the 

good Lord has been lucky to people i n Badin, because you had, ove r - a l l , some 

good, leadership . The odds are against you, from 1938 t o today—I believe 

tha t i s forty-two years [whist les]—so t h e r e ' s been a l o t of leadership . 

GH 1 Leadership i n the union or i n management? 

DRYE* The a t t i t ude towards unions s ta r ted changing probably in 1944, a t 

the time t ha t t h i s Local 303 was formed, the old aluminum workers. And I ' ve 

forgotten what t ha t name i s . I could probably d ig out one of the contracts 

somewhere. There a r e n ' t but two copies of the f i r s t aluminum workers' contract 

t ha t they signed, in exis tence, t ha t I know anything about. I'm ra ther proud, 

of the s t e e l workers, what they stand for and. what they've attempted t o do 

through the years . They haven' t r e a l l y , in my opinion, received enough 

recognition for the fundamental, down-to-earth i ssues they've bat t led for . 

The welfare of the working man. Even today, you organize a plant in to the 

Steel Workers, the f i r s t contract i s going t o be as near t o the basic s t e e l 
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contract as you can come up with. And that's true of aluminum workers, 

Alcoa, Reynolds, Kaiser, any of them; it's a basic steel contract which is 

pretty much standard throughout the industry. Some locals work harder getting 

there. We didn't get the high standard, of living, high wages and benefits In 

the first contract we signed, [chucklej It's laughable, really, to call it 

a contract, but it was a contract. 

RH; Back in the thirties, say from 1934 on, supposedly there was an 

A F of L union here. Do you have any recollection of that union at all? 

DRYE* The Aluminum Workers were A F of L and still are, for our technical 

terms. That's probably, in my opinion, what's wrong with construction trades. 

Hm, I'm getting into some touchy ground now. [Chuckle] Because they form 

crafts rather than the industrial-type union. And this is one of the 

considerations, and perhaps the big consideration. . . . In 1936, when the 

SWOC, the Steel Workers International Organizing Committee, the beginning 

of the southern drive, although it didn't go national until 1946, I guess it 

was. They wanted to split the people in the plant into crafts, each craft 

in one. Now you were setting up about a dozen locals, is what the final 

effect would be, and then your pot room people in one union and your tire(?) 

people in another union. Well, in effect you were wrecking the organization 

that was existing. At that time I was attending the union meetings fairly 

regular to that point, and that was one of the considerations in affiliating 

with the Steel Workers. And it wasn't easy to sell the membership. 

Although then [chuckleJ at one point—it never did materialize that you 

might have had one or two meetings in the early days, '36, '37, '38, with 

the black on one side of town and the whites on the other. Have two 

union meetings. I have never been able to quite analyze that, but it didn't 

sit with the white or the black. They were in one union at that point, and 
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even tha t far back there was a movement of black and white together , because 

they worked on the same jobs in the p lan t . Although [chuckle] how you got 

there was a very devious route for blacks, even up u n t i l 1953. The l i n e s 

of progression spelled i t out, and tha t got against the law and among 

th ings . But even t ha t fa r back, beyond t h a t , i t d i d n ' t j e l l with the 

leadership. So t h i s i s a l l of the considerations of people.(?) And I cannot, 

even though I 've dea l t with them d i r e c t over ten years . . . . I t was longer 

than t h a t , because u n t i l I l e f t the plant I met a meeting the day before. 

I wasn't in the executive board; I was j u s t a rank-and-fi le with another job 

to do. But t h i s was a consideration for going in to the Steel Workers. 

RH: Because t h i s was a way . . . 

DRYE* Because they'd take everybody, craf t and everybody e l s e . Although 

when i t comes to representat ive negot ia t ions , you do get separation take place; 

t h e r e ' s no question about t h a t . You have t o . You can ' t t a lk about a laborer 

in a p lant and. a craf t in the same terminology. There's no way you can do i t . 

RH* Say, then, from the time in '44 when you went over t o Steel Workers, 

i s t ha t r ight? 

DRYE* Yes. June the f i f t h i s when the char ter says . I j u s t found out 

something myself when I got to reviewing t h i s t h i s morning. I d i d n ' t know 

tha t O.B. Lackey was the president two d i f fe ren t t imes. I ' l l l e t you have 

t h a t . 

RH* Oh, g r ea t . Thank you. 

DRYE* That's readily available. I've got a file in my files. 

RHi I'm just trying to figure out what period it would have been where 

the blacks had meetings on their side, and the whites had. on their side. 

DRYE* That was in the organizing effort. It would, have had to have 

been in late '36 or early '37. Then after the company actually recognized 
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a small nu. . . . We weren't in the majority of the people. The union 

membership would pay dues errat ical ly ,You couldnt c a l l i t , i n the terminology 

we use today, Local 303, There was a so-called off icer without any formal 

e l ec t ion . And I can ' t a t t h i s point t e l l you what the date was. The A F of L 

sent Nick Zanovich in here . He stayed, probably, three or four months. 

He j u s t died l a s t year. 

RH* Who was he? 

DRYEj He's from out of Pittsburgh, New Kensington, He came up in the 

New Kensington plant, which is now defunct. Has been for ten years, about. 

It outgrew itself. 

RH* Was he an organizer? 

DRYE1 He was an organizer in the early days. He was the president of 

the Aluminum Workers International union at the time the unions were being 

formed. He spent a lot of time here in Badin. I knew Nick in the international 

office. He was absorbed into the Pittsburgh office of the Steel Workers. 

Still had the service unions from the top level to the other eleven; there 

were twelve levels at that time. Then later he went into Washington as the 

director of organization in the A F of L-CIO. He was in that position when 

he died. He was still in organization. He was an organizer; there's no 

question about it. 

RH* During all those years, were there pretty much organizers here 

most of the time? 

DRYE: Not from the time the election was held and it was affiliated with 

the Steel Workers in 1944. I don't know how much you understand about the 

steel workers' representation. It's a chain of command. You had an inter­

national representative who was out of the Pittsburgh office— or he might 

not have been out, but he was paid by the Pittsburgh office of the Steel Workers— 
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who serviced and. handled, grievances from the fourth step on through 

arbitration. It was the option of the president. First- and second-step 

grievances, whatever the nature was under the contract, were handled by 

the president at the second step and the third step. At the fourth step, 

then the international stepped in and helped. But that's the extent of 

the organizing. All the other organizing after that point was done by 

the membership themselves, by people who were presidents and the executive 

board, the plant committeemen and this sort of thing. After the merger, 

we termed, it, when we went into the Steel Workers, and it went right on 

pretty soon into the international office (they went international). . . . 

I would say till the election in 1940, there was no active organizer in 

the Badin locality. It started in 1940, really. 

RH* That organizers came in. 

DRYE* You might say they left. And even at that point, there was never 

that many here, and it was about the extent of it. On this list—and. this 

is an amazing thing to me; I got to analyzing it a while ago, and this is 

the one place that you'd seem to be that it wouldn't be as strong as others— 

except for two people on this list who were out of the. . . . This is the 

charter of affiliation, where I left these names, only eight people who 

were charter members of this Local 303. There was John Carrick and John 

Fultz. There was three, really. Lonnie Bagwell and John Qarrick were in the 

pot room department. John Fultz was a fireman out of the mechanical 

department. And the others were in the power division. So the nucleus of 

the original organizing effort started back there with 0. B. Lackey and 

McGroskey, Dean Culver. 

RH* And. 0. B. Lackey worked where? 

DRYE* In the power division. That was in the generation at the powerhouses, 
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and then. . . . 

RH* L. A. Stiller? 

DRYE; And Shankle was in the rotor station, it was still in the power 

division. One was down on the river, and the other was in the plant location 

itself, within the plant gates. 

RH* And who was John Carrick? 

DRYE i John Carrick was in the pot room. And Lonnie Baswell was in the 

pot room. 

RH: John Fultz? 

DRYE: John Fultz was in the mechanical, I never quite figured that one, 

I knew John well, 

RH* And then t h e r e ' s Fincher? 

DRYE* FLelaJ Fincher was the office secre tary . She married Dean 

Culver. She was a member of the local a t tha t time, and I had been excluded, 

because the Steel Workers' const i tu t ion excludes people who do not work 

within the mil l i t s e l f . "Or a j u r i sd i c t ion thereof," o r some terminology 

or language of tha t th ing. 

RH* But she married Dean Culver. 

DRYE* That's when he was president of the local. They married after 

he left the presidency, I know of another history tied to that fellow, too, 

but it gets into the UTW and TWA, which gets into the history and the 

attitude of people in this part of the country, and the split in the textile 

union in 1950. 

RHi Where does 0. B. Lackey come into. . . . 

DRYEi 0. B. Lackey was the first president of A F of L, the Aluminum 

Workers. And Dean went on the payroll of the TWUA, the Textile Workers' 

Union, 

RH* So he was pretty much the spearhead, then, of the original union 
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of A F of L. 

DRYE* I would say, from that nucleus of about a handful of people, that 

was the spearhead, 

RH* How do you think he developed these union sentiments, out in this 

isolated community? 

DRYE* You have to analyze individuals. Where did I develop mine, except 

in the background of my mother and father's nature of wanting to help your 

fellow man. That has to be in everybody that. . . . Because I'm a firm 

believer, and I've been convinced of this many a time, the membership will 

cull out those who do not have the dedication towards helping your fellow 

man. You do not put in the hours necessary without having a dedication about 

it. The pay is not there. Of course, now you get all kinds of attitudes 

about the pay of the union people. It cost me money in the twelve years I 

was involved actually actively. I know it cost me money when I went on the 

state payroll and travelled the state. Fifteen months, and I found out I 

could not afford the job. 

RH* So it's a matter of 0. B. Lackey, then, feeling that the union was 

going to help his fellow man. 

DRYE: Yes, I think that's right. And. Dean Culver probably had the 

stronger feeling. 

RH; By improving the working conditions in the plant? 

DRYE* Yes, and I fail. . . . Because those fellows in the power 

division had a different type job from the actual labor viewpoint. They 

were in a control room or something of that nature. Every single one of them 

were switchboard operators, 

RH* Where would he have learned about unions, 0, B, Lackey? 
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DRYE* That would take a h is tory from the point t ha t he came to work here 

sometime before the ear ly t h i r t i e s . And I have never took the t ime. I have 

wondered . . . 

BEGIN TAPE I I SIDE I 

DRYE: . . . the conditions are in the p lant . But a t the same time, 

we have a pride in the job tha t Alcoa has done, not only j u s t in Badin but 

Alcoa nationwide. Alcoa se t back u n t i l the government t r ied to break i t up 

r igh t a f t e r the War, when they gave Reynolds a l l the DPC p lan t s . And they 

broke up the aluminum monopoly. But i t got Alcoa off t h e i r r ea r , and they 

had to get in to research. This i s the best thing tha t ever happened to Alcoa and. . , 

To ac tua l ly face i t , although Reynolds got competition. Alcoa star ted a 

he l l of a research program. There's no question about i t . The things they've 

gotten i n to , and s t i l l a r e . There are some things in the science and 

technology today tha t Alcoa developed. Maybe the space program wouldn't 

have been what i t was had i t not been for the Research Testing Laboratory 

r igh t out of Pit tsburgh in New Kensington. Chuckle] But the nature of 

the people i s too way out for me to t r y t o , to the layman, or even dealing 

with people here . There was tha t pr ide, and there was a l o t of se l f -po l ic ing . 

If you got out of l ine about what you was doing in the plant—black or white, 

I'm speaking of ju s t people—there was a cer ta in man(?) went by the re , "You've 

got to s t ra ighten up, do a l i t t l e be t te r than t h i s . " Or maybe i t was concern 

for the fellow man. The dedication to each other was already here , and maybe 

i t ' s a l l part of the same package. I t ' s complicated, too complicated for me. 

Me and my daughter have talked about i t many a day. And she went to school 

four years to study t h i s sor t of thing, Chucklej This gets way off the bea t (? ) . 
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RH: One thing t h a t ' s occurred to me i s tha t in some ways the presence 

of the union here , which would keep the s i tua t ion for workers very much under 

control and very beneficial for workers, in some ways helped Alcoa to be a 

be t t e r company, to be looked upon not with as much resentment as an industry 

which treated i t s workers l e s s well would receive . So in some ways the union 

has helped the image of Alcoa, 

DRY'S: I t has . I'm convinced of t h a t . I t ' s par t of the same ba l l of wax; 

i t has to be. This i s t r u e . . . . I ' ve been i n other loca t ions . I spent 

considerable time down a t Alcoa, Tennessee. And a l l they've got down there 

i s what I ca l l them Tennessee mountaineers, and t h a t ' s a hardy group of 

people. They'l l j u s t as soon f ight you as to look a t you, except when you 

get in good with those people t h e y ' l l do anything in the world for you. 

And t h e y ' l l walk out and h i t the brick before you. . . . r chuckle j You 

jus t don ' t sneeze a t one of them, because h e ' s not going t o . . , , 

Have a whole par t of a plant out, or a whole p lan t . 

RH; So you don ' t think t h e r e ' s the same specialness in Maryville tha t 

there i s here i n Badin. 

DRYE; Not when i t comes to Alcoa employees. Somewhere back through here 

I think we've a l l missed a chain of influence tha t Alcoa has had on i t s 

employees since the ea r ly days in the t h i r t i e s , tha t you t r y to f i t t h a t t o 

the general concept of the way the nat ional pic ture looks in the treatment 

of people and the welfare of people. I t doesn ' t deviate so far from the 

nat ional , but i t ' s a l i t t l e ahead. [Chucklej There are people r igh t now 

within the Steel Workers who say we're l i v ing in a welfare s t a t e . To a 

cer ta in degree, we a r e . But I don ' t think i t ' s a l l welfare; i f i t ever ge ts to tha t 
point , 

I don ' t know. But I have failed somewhere along the way to be able to 

analyze the true Alcoa employee, or Steel Workers union member. 
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RH* There are some people who are saying tha t t h i s special feel ing 

and t h i s high morale of Alcoa workers i s kind of changing because of. . . . 

McAlister, for example, has been quoted as saying men are not as important 

as production, and i t ' s production before safety, and tha t t h i s has signified 

a rea l change in the morale a t the p lant . This seems to be a new development. 

How do you feel about tha t? 

DRYE* Frankly, in my own, and I talked to the man probably a dozen times 

before I r e t i r e d , but my outside impression. . . . I'm t rying to convince 

myself t ha t there hasn ' t been a change in Alcoa's management a t t i t u d e . 

Rather, I think i t ' s in the personal i ty of McAlister. I think, frankly, the 

man i s putt ing up a front which he doesn ' t believe in h i s dealings in the 

c iv ic organizations and t h i s so r t of th ing, in f ac t , the Board of Trustees. 

And you see him a t a l l these things without seeing anything. . . . This i s 

my measure, probably as much as anybody, and I 've heard i t since I r e t i r e d : 

"Hell , you never see him out there in the p lan t . " And t h i s i s a mistake, 

with anybody here . I know you cannot know every individual tha t 

comes through tha t p lant , everyone you walk by, but you ought to make an 

e f fo r t , have somebody within tha t department t ha t can ca l l them off to you 

on the s ide . There's ways to accomplish i t , and you ca l l t h i s personnel 

r e l a t i ons , I guess. But I do not bel ieve. . . . And perhaps, before t h i s 

se t of negotiat ions i s over with, I can t e l l you whether t h e r e ' s been a 

change in Alcoa's top management. The management pol ic ies are se t in Pittsburgh 

and are supposed to be implemented, in each plant loca t ion , and i t ' s the same 

in every loca t ion . This has been going on for t h i r t y years . Call i t a master 

plan; maybe t h a t ' s what i t i s . But I think i t ' s the person, the man who i s 

the works manager, r a ther than Alcoa's policy. I hope I'm r i gh t , because I 've 

got news for them i f I am not r i g h t , and Alcoa i t s e l f i s in t rouble . Because 
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I'm convinced i f i t comes to it—and Alcoa learned t h i s lesson hard—that 

the Badin wil l s t i l l s t r ike i f the president of tha t loca l says, "We're 

going on s t r ike May 1 ." Because t h a t ' s what we did in 1956. I'm pos i t ive ; 

I was r igh t in the middle of i t . I was s i t t i n g in New York when they l e f t us 

s i t t i n g there from two o'clock in the afternoon u n t i l s ix tha t n ight , and. 

they were supposed to come back for the o f f i c i a l s igning. Lo and. behold, 

four hours l a t e r we find out they ' re a l l back in Pi t tsburgh. Well, tha t 

wasn't a lockout, but i t was a technical in te rp re ta t ion because we had a l l 

agreed t o a s t r i ke procedure, only one guard s i t t i n g in the gate down in the 

guardhouse. That 's a l l t h a t ' s ever been here , and people r ide up.(?) Hell , they 

thought i t was on s t r ike when the plant shut down. There was no picket l ine 

out the re . And t h i s i s unheard of. But i f t h i s i s the a t t i t ude or the change 

in policy from Alcoa, Alcoa's in t rouble . They' l l have a s t r ike on t h e i r 

hands over tha t i s sue . 

GH* You sor t of tend to feel l ike h e ' s not j u s t r e f l ec t ing any 

change in pol ic ies in Pi t tsburgh, but i t j u s t has to be the way he i s . 

DRYE: Maybe I'm wishfully thinking, and I have nothing concrete to go on, 

but I'm convincedj I hear too many people who make t h e i r statement about i t : 

"Oh,the s . o .b . ( ? ) " I t ' s h i s approach to people. And when you find tha t kind 

of a t t i t ude by the working man, o r even management people, towards him, then 

you be t t e r look out because by gol ly , t h e r e ' s something going on tha t shouldn' t 

be. 

RH: Do people a lso hold him to some extent responsible for the withdrawal 

of Alcoa from i t s c iv ic role in t h i s town in a l o t of ways? 

DRYE; They haven' t gotten around to tha t ye t . 

RH: You think t h a t ' s next? 

DRYE: I think t h a t ' s next . Now the true colors a r e . . . . \Chuckle] 

In my opinion, I think McAlister*s got a t the maximum two years a t t h i s plant 
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loca t ion , i f somebody a t the Pit tsburgh l eve l i s on t h e i r t oes . He came in 

here to do a job, in my opinion, and h e ' s j u s t about accomplished i t . And 

h e ' s bu i l t resentment in t h i s town by going up here and tear ing down these 

vacant buildings. I mean t h e r e ' s s t i l l ft deep attachment for the old folks , 

and t h e r e ' s a ce r ta in sentimental value. But what the h e l l , i f they ' re f a l l ing 

in and i t ' s an eyesore. I t r y to take a middle road about tha t when they ' re 

blaming McAlister for i t . Well, t h a t ' s about a l l he ' s accomplished while 

h e ' s been here . He's about bought everything downtown, and sooner or l a t e r 

there won't be anything but the union ha l l and the telephone building and. 

our new cred i t union building, i f we ever get around to building i t . There was a meet 

ing ; I was supposed to go t o , and they cancelled i t on us , 0^ e boy had to go 

out of town or somebody was sick or something, I don ' t know what i t was. 

I'm not going to say what we're going t o build and then have a l l the people 

in the plant cussing me again. I t ' s going t o be the committee. I'm ready 

to take the . . . . [Chucklej I 've been through i t twice already, so I know 

what to expect. But I think i t ' s in the man who i s the works manager, 

r a the r than a change of operation pol icy. 

RH* But do you think he was dispatched from Pit tsburgh to get a l l the 

buildings knocked down here in Badin and to eliminate the town buildings? 

DRYE* Yes. Now l e t me t e l l you a s tory about Alcoa's operat ion. The 

plans tha t Alcoa i s making today, what they ' re doing today i s for implementation 

ten years from now. Because I saw the s e t of blueprints for t h i s p lant , t ha t 

was bu i l t and put in operation in i960, i n 1954. The whole th ing . 

RH* You mean they ' re t rying to expand Alcoa, and they ' re going to take 

over t h i s property? 

DRYE; That i s my thinking, because, you see , i f you look a t the plant 

and what's surrounding i t , t h e r e ' s not much other way to go except to the north, 
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and the plant road was relocated because of tha t expansion. You t a lk about 

a r o l l e r mill in here where you r o l l out the sheet , i t takes more than tha t 

space, and the downtown wi l l be some kind of extrusion. Alcoa, in my opinion, 

i s coming to a finished product on the primary aluminum production s i t e . Where 

aluminum i s made, t h a t ' s where the product 's going t o be f inished, and you're 

going to ship the finished product. I heard, tha t t h i r t y years ago. 

RH: So you think t h e i r next plan i s extrusion in tha t downtown area . 

DRYE: Yes. So tha t the land i s not ava i lab le . You couldn' t say 

tha t Alcoa has kept other industry out. You can ' t come in and build a p lant , 

j u s t some l i t t l e fly-by-night o u t f i t . I don ' t want tha t kind in here , and 

I don ' t think the people do. And t h e r e ' s not an industry could move i n . 

They've p re t ty much control led, because they owned everything for miles 

up and down the r i ve r , lumber and. everything e l s e . When they star ted in 'jy7t 

they started to d ives t themselves of fores t ry and tha t sor t of th ing. 

RH* What does t h i s mean for the people in the town? The people came 

here because, as you were ta lking about before, Alcoa recruited them. And 

they se t up t h i s town so tha t people would s tay here . And now t h e i r h i r ing 

policy i s such tha t they don ' t j u s t hire from people in Badin anymore. And. 

McAlister ju s t about told me himself t ha t they were t rying to kind of d ives t 

themselves of t h i s company-town image and t ry ing to cut t h e i r t i e s with the 

community. What do you think t h i s a l l means for the people in t h i s town who 

have t h i s special feel ing about Alcoa? 

DRYE* I think Alcoa, for the f inancial gain, t h e r e ' s going to be a cost 

t h a t ' s going to be expensive. They approached me in 1956 or '57 about disposing 

of the water and sewers, which was j u s t not being implemented. And I bucked i t . 

And I s t i l l buck i t . I think i t was the wrong th ing. Alcoa established t h i s 

town; they hired people and. brought them in here; and t h i s i s one of the 
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services tha t you supplied, as part of the wages. Now you can na i l tha t one 

any way you want t o , and we ' l l argue about i t , but I s t i l l say Alcoa i s 

obligated to maintain t h i s water system. I t ' s one of the fringe benef i ts , 

i f you please. But i t started, in other p lan t s , and probably Badin i s the 

l a s t one tha t s t i l l had t h i s . • • . And t h e r e ' s a resentment when they 

keep the water treatment plant in operation to supply t h e i r own p lan t . And 

t h i s i s bad. r e l a t ions with your employees. And. you keep adding those l i t t l e 

things on the people, and you build back the resentment you had back there 

years ago. What i t takes to c lear the a i r in the future , I wouldn't go tha t f a r . 

But now they ' re shoving off the respons ib i l i ty of t h e i r old di lapidated 

water system on the county, and i t ' s going to come back to the people who 

they have—let ' s put i t bluntly—discarded.. No mistake, we earn good pensions, 

and we're well taken care of. But we had to f ight hard for i t . And you'd 

have to say, "Well, they ' re no d i f ferent from any other p lan t . They 

wouldn't have been as good, i f we hadn' t had the union here ba t t l ing for i t , 

and beginning to s t r ike (? ) for i t . " They jus t d i d n ' t hand, i t to u s . We 

would threaten to s t r i ke and a l l t h i s through the years , and we've ac tua l ly 

pulled the s t r i k e s . There was one in '56 for ten days. I c a n ' t , not r e a l l y , 

accept t h i s . I think ac tua l ly t h i s was a decision tha t was made on the 

top level in the Pittsburgh of f ice , to d ives t themselves of, . . . In other 

words, they ' re ju s t an aluminum production business. That 's what they 

t r ied to t e l l me in ' 57 . I sa id , "You may be, but t h i s i s par t of the cost 

of producing tha t same damn aluminum. As long as I'm president of t h i s 

l oca l , you're going to keep i t , too . You may do i t , but i t ' d be over my 
/ ( t reasurer?) 

b a t t l e , and. I ' l l take i t as much as our t reasury ' w i l l l e t me go, and my 

executive board wi l l l e t me spend." 

RH* So you don ' t see t h i s as a pa t e rna l i s t i c a t t i t ude tha t Alcoa has in 
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the water and the sewage system, tha t those days of paternalism are r e a l l y 

over. 

DRYE: They're gone. They're over and done, as fa r as Alcoa's a t t i t ude i s 

concerned. But I see a l i t t l e b i t of weakening of tha t shield or a t t i t u d e , 

because now they ' re opening up a development. Original ly there was houses 

back over across behind, i f you know where the VFW hut i s . That section 

back there , the land i s being offered for s a l e , along the old ra i l road t racks 

back to the brick dump. They're going to s e l l off more l o t s , because Alcoa's 

employees. . . . God knows, I wouldn't even attempt to say what the bulk of 

i t i s , for people who are commuting. And t h a t ' s going to be a problem for 

Alcoa to deal with one of these days, too . 

RH* In what way? 

DRYE* The expense of commuting. When you t r ave l a l l the way from down 

in Morgan. . . . And t h e r e ' s s ix colored people down there , and they've stayed on 

the sh i f t ; they 've traded and cussed and qui t and everything e lse 

and a l l stayed so they could r ide in the same vehicle , God knows, for t h i r t y -

eight years tha t I know of. And they ' re s t i l l d r iv ing . But now one of these 

days. . . . And. people who l ive in Salisbury and Albemarle and a l l for 
/ ( f i f t y? ) 

f i f teen 'mi les , i t ' s going to be a tremendous cos t . And t h a t ' s why property 

in Badin i s so damned high. This house doubled in p r i ce , in value, in two 

years . 

RH; Because workers at Alcoa want to move from the outside areas into 

town? 

DRYE* They're looking for their own welfare, too. Those people are 

thinking for themselves. This is all part of this divesting* see. 

Actually, they started divesting themselves of real estate and houses in '57. 

That is nothing new; it just drug without anybody really forcing the issue. 
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They come in here and star ted putt ing the pressure, buying a l l these empty 

store buildings downtown. 

RH; You mentioned S. A. Copp before. Was i t much of a struggle for 

S. A. Copp and Holmes, who came in a f t e r him as works manager, to remove 

t h i s pa te rna l i s t feel ing about the people in town? Did they have to r e a l l y 

be educated about t h i s , or did they j u s t d ie out , and t h a t ' s how i t stopped? 

DRYE; !Laughter] You're more perceptive than I rea l ized . J , B, Holmes 

came in here, and from the f i r s t day he was one of the boys. He hadn' t been 

here three days t i l l a plant employee who was a switchboard operator checked 

a lock a t him in a poker game. And he had a f i t , but he accomplished h is 

purpose. What he did , when tha t guy checked tha t lock a t him. . . . Where 

he came from, you jus t don ' t check a lock. You've got everybody on the 

board locked, and he had the winning hand, and t h a t ' s what you ca l l checking 

a lock. And tha t was the third day he'd been here . Now how he got an invi te 

to tha t poker game, I ' l l never figure out . And I played golf with the man 

back in those days. 

RH: So he had learned the mistakes of S. A. Copp. 

DRYE: He had learned them. And he was sent here , , , , See, t h i s i s 

what 's happened. That 's what I'm saying, a twenty-year plan, a t l e a s t ten 

years in advance. I f they have a cer ta in job to do, Alcoa has the employees, 

they can reach and pick, and he re ' s the man for the job. And t h e r e ' s some 

smart people s i t t i n g up there in tha t ivory tower, we ca l l i t , t h a t ' s been 

in the thing more than one day. When you go up on the top f loor , and the 

th i r ty - foo t t inted window panes, and see the whole c i t y of Pi t tsburgh, i t i s 

an ivory tower. There's something in i t today. And the f i r s t Holmes tha t 

came in here was to destroy t h i s pa t e rna l i s t i c a t t i t u d e , and he did a p re t ty 

good job of i t . In l a t e r years , i f he was sober enough t o get out the re . 
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He l e f t ( ? ) family; h i s wife had problems, and i t got in to the p ic tu re . 

But he stayed here t i l l he r e t i r e d . 

GH* Do you see the pos s ib i l i t y sometime in the future of 

the people in the community of Badin organizing and incorporating the place, 

forming a . , , 

DRYE* Well, you know, i f Alcoa had been smart, t ha t was my counter­

proposal: Now i f you want to d ives t yourself of t h i s th ing, we ' l l guarantee 

you we ' l l incorporate i t , and t h i s i s the union spokesman speaking. I t hadn' t 

been too long before then tha t we moved in on the precinct level down the re . 

We got the board together, and we had about t h i r t y - e igh t of us , I bel ieve, 

went into the Democratic precinct meeting. Well, they'd been going along, 

two or three of the , . , . Jack Lanning and Ralph, who lived next door-; 

they lived next to me a t tha t time on L i t t l e Kirk Place. There'd be about 

two or three of them go in there , and they'd e l ec t o f f i ce r s , and they weren't 

doing nothing. Alcoa controlled the p o l i t i c s , and we got t i red of i t . We 

moved in there , and we cleaned house. I can s t i l l see tha t n ight . The 

ones tha t were there , there was two l e f t , and they went out the doors front 

and back, began to telephone. By the time they got back, we done had a l l 

the o f f i ce r s . And we kept i t for two years . And we taught the people in 

the Alcoa management and our own people a lesson, and we got i t across to them: 

you go out and you get ac t ive , and you go out and you vote. And t h i s l o c a l i t y , 

t h i s precinct , i s s t i l l one of the highest percentage voting, and i t started 

back a t tha t point . I t ' s been God knows how many years ago. And we 

threatened them a t tha t point , and had they been smart, they would have gone 

a l l the way a t tha t point . We would have incorporated the town. We were 

determined to do i t , because we went back and talked i t over in board meetings. 

Carried i t back to the board and carried i t t o the membership a t the next 
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membership meeting. 

GH: Do you think tha t would be a good thing r igh t now? 

DRYE; At tha t point ; now i t ' s not . 

GH * Now you don ' t think so? 

DRYE* No, because you're asking the people to incorporate in to a he l l 

of an expense. There's no way you could ever s e l l . . . . I would not , in 

a l l honesty, expect them t o . . . . Well, we're going to have t o have two 

and a half mill ion, and those figures were compiled three years ago, what 

i t would cost to replace t h i s sewer system. Two and a half mil l ion. God 

knows, i t ' d be ten million now, to replace the sewer system. And. t h e r e ' s 

not many years tha t the people in the county are going to have to pick up 

Alcoa's burden, and t h i s I resent , and I think other people in the county 

are beginning to show resentment. I would be resentful of i t . Alcoa's 

; now i t ' s wore out, and they want us to build a 

new one, you see . And t h i s i s going to create an image of Alcoa t h a t ' s not 

good, and t h i s i s why I don ' t think t h i s i s what Alcoa wants in the top l e v e l . 

I t has to be one big a t t i t ude change in the top level management of i t . 

RH* So do you think t h e y ' l l get smart back in Pittsburgh and see tha t 

maybe McAlister i s ge t t ing Alcoa in to trouble down here , and t h e y ' l l pul l him 

out? 

DRYE* I think he ' s got two years a t the most. I think he has two years, 

and h e ' s going to be f i red . 

RH; That 's been the rumor about town, tha t McAlister was down here for 

two years, and once he finished h is job he was going to go back. I 'd never 

heard anybody explain to me what they thought tha t job was to do, r e a l l y , 

DRYE: He's had me from the word go, in the f i r s t meeting we had. He 

called a l l the so-called executives and. o f f ice rs . And I wasn't even an of f icer ; 

kept i t a l l these [years 
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I was j u s t a committeeman in the mechanical department. That 's a l l the 

obligation I wanted. Of course, they rammed(?) t h i s wage-job study implementing 

the apprentice program through, and seeing. . . . Because I s tar ted in 1954 

with i t , and I was probably more familiar with the actual workings of an 

apprentice program than anybody e lse in the l o c a l i t y . And maybe I had a 

l i t t l e something over a few of them in the Pit tsburgh of f ice . This i s the 

Steel Workers I'm ta lking about. And management and the union both got 

together, and they kind of pushed me into i t . I wanted, to get out of i t . 

And [chuckle] my God., I have never o f f i c i a l l y resigned; I 've j u s t r e t i r e d , 

I d i d n ' t get out of it,And see, old Paddy Ross, h e ' s s i t t i n g around, 

and h e ' s t e l l i n g us what to do and what not to do, I think I did the job 

tha t they pushed me in to , but I wanted to get out of i t . And t h i s i s the 

extent , tha t he got us a l l together, and t h i s was h i s program, I could 

have punched i t fu l l of holes then i f I 'd been s i t t i n g across the bargaining 

table with him. I 've always been id io t enough to take on the biggest one. That 's 

the one i t ' s eas ies t to punch the holes i n . "The bigger they are , the harder they f a l l " , 
and t h a t ' s 

s t i l l a true saying. I 've never been afraid to 

take on the big one. Because h e ' s going to t r i ck himself sooner or l a t e r , 

because he doesn ' t believe in what h e ' s t ry ing to say as much as I believe 

in what I'm saying. And I 've had a philosophy a l l those years tha t i f you 

think i t ' s wrong, t h e r e ' s something in tha t contract to cover you. And t h a t ' s 

p re t ty damn much t r ue . My a rb i t r a t i on record shows t h a t , I 've beat some 

pre t ty smart lawyers from Alcoa, I was a burr and was t i l l the l a s t day I 

worked; I intended to be. You don ' t mistreat people, and. you don ' t t r e a t 

people that they ' re blagh [word of d i sgus t ! . Not around me; i t goes against 

my be t t e r gra in . 

GK ; As Davy Crockett said, "Know your r i gh t s and go ahead(?) ." 
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I Laughter] 

DRYE; I think the very fact that Alcoa did divest themselves. . . . 

I never like to get into church politics, but I have to agree, I cannot 

rebut the statement, and this is Rev, Hunter. My opinion was, Alcoa found 

them a patsy. 

RH; How? 

DRYE: You know, they both came to Badin about the same time. I'm 

not a Presbyterian; I'm not a Baptis t ; I'm a member of the Method 1st Church, 

which i s a carry-over from the Lutheran, which I was going when I was th i r t een 

years o ld . But how he s tays in t h i s church, I f a i l to see , with the resentment 

of the people against him. He's done a good job se l l i ng the people in h is 

church. The woman next door came one night . I sa id , "You're a good, neighbor 

of mine, and I wi l l not get in to an argument with you. I am opposed to i t . 

I wi l l sign no pe t i t ion because I do not , and my opinion from '57 has not 

changed, and I prefer tha t we jus t drop i t , " 

RH; Oh, Rev, Hunter's t rying to get people to incorporate, i s tha t i t ? 

DRYE; I wouldn't be surpr ised. 

GH, So the point i s , the company wouldn't mind a t a l l i f . . , , 

DRYE; Not now, no. This would accomplish what they ' re a f t e r , in my 

opinion. 

RH; You know how I think they respond t o t h a t . They say, "Well, people 

have become accustomed to Alcoa taking care of them, and they don ' t take 

care of themselves now, and I wi l l do for the people what they wi l l do for 

themselves. I ' l l meet them halfway," I 've heard McAlister say tha t to me, 

t ha t t h a t ' s the policy tha t he professes, 

DRYE: I think you're right. That's my sentiment. 
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RH: The thing i s , though, t ha t tha t sounds l i ke a rea l smooth statement, 

but what's beyond tha t i s tha t they have plans for the future where they 

want to cut t h e i r t i e s . 

DRYE: Because they do not want t h i s added expenditure. They saw i t coming 

almost twenty-five years ago, '57 . And. I think, frankly, a t tha t point , had 

Alcoa's top management a t t i t ude about . . . 

BEGIN TAPE I I SIDE I I 

DRYE; . . . gets on your property taxes . I t ' s beginning to squeeze me, 

as well as everybody e l s e . And you've got the county water system instead of hav­

ing the forerunner. Then you've got i t coming t r a i l i n g along behind(?), 

which i s kind of a l laughter] d isowned chi ld , the water system. I t could 

have been implemented, and you could have kept i t repaired .Then the costs wouldn't 

be near as great as they are now. For the past f i f teen years , t h e r e ' s 

been nothing d i d n ' t have to be fixed to sa t i s fy the government, to keep from 

shutt ing i t down. In fac t , i f i t wasn't Alcoa, with a l l the s t r ings tha t 

they can pu l l , t h i s sewer system would have been shut down ten years ago. 

And the water system, a l l I can say about what I 've got from the mains in 

my house. I t ' s new copper piping. I t was done before I moved here . I t took 

a few nasty statements and pushing j u s t a t the r igh t place. You learn a few 

t r i c k s dealing with management through the years . You don ' t j u s t go, "You're 

going to do t h i s " ; you go around behind, and you do a l i t t l e undercover work. 

I'm s t i l l not opposed to Badin being incorporated, i f somebody would show me 

who i s going to pay for the sewer system. The water system i s not in a l l tha t 

bad a shape. I t ' s not a l l tha t much expense to make one t ap . In fac t , I 

don ' t know today i f we're on the county's water system. We're paying county 
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r igh t in to the county courthouse l ike everybody e l s e , but where the water ' s 

coming from I don ' t Icnow, because Alcoa's feeding part of i t , too, I understand. 

This i s only hearsay. But t h i s i s part of the thing tha t McAlister came here 

to do. And I think tear ing down a l l the buildings was j u s t to get rid of t h e . . . , 

Of course, they ought to have been off the tax books years ago. Vacant 

property has got a d i f ferent evaluation from buildings, whatever the repai r 

s t a tus i s or lack of repa i r . And t h i s i s the one thing he hasn ' t accomplished 

yet . 

RH: To t ea r down the buildings. Well, I think tha t i s very i n t e r e s t i ng . 

DRYE; And I t e l l you, in a l l fairness to the man, within two years he ' s 

going to accomplish i t , e i t h e r through Hunter. . . . He's misguided, h e ' s . . . 

RH; That 's going to be because the people who own them are going to die 

in the next two years . That 's why. I t ' s a t e s t of w i l l s . jLaughter] 

DRYE: He only scratched the surface of knowing the people in Badin and 

the rea l h is tory behind the formation of the loca l union. I* *#& a 

he l l of an amount [ t o do] with what Badin i s today. The people in the 

Alcoa p lant , 

RH; I think those buildings are very symbolic to me, because i t i s l ike 

the people 's attempt to hold on to something tha t was here . They have meaning 

because people want. . . . Even i f they ' re crumbling and fa l l ing down. You 

know, Vera Mason keeps those things in her s t o r e ; she doesn ' t want t o take them 

out. And the three s i s t e r s who own tha t pharmacy have got tha t marble top on 

i t , and they've got tha t l i t t l e sign for the ice cream cones s t i l l up the re . 

They want to keep something there tha t i s what Badin used to be. 

DRYE; But you know, I understand tha t they've weakened and they've sold. 

Just in the past week. You're r i gh t , but t h e r e ' s a general reluctance in us 

a l l , and t h a t ' s one of the things I learned: don ' t change the s t a tus quo. If 
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you change i t , do i t a l i t t l e b i t a t a t i r e , t ha t I don ' t recognize; ju s t don ' t 

go in there and weeee, l ike an earthquake's come through, or a tornado has 

wiped i t c l ea r . You don ' t handle people t ha t way, not j u s t Badin people but 

I think t h a t ' s true anywhere. Don't change the s t a tus quo. We get too, 

when you get older, they ca l l i t s e t in your ways, but i t ' s s t i l l in the younger 

generation. Don't change things too much, because we as individuals , human 

beings, can ' t accept too much change a t one time; we c a n ' t absorb i t . I t ' s 

too big for us t o cope with. That 's the way I look a t i t . ^Chucklej And i t ' s 

going t o be i n t e r e s t i ng . I hope I'm around to see the conclusion. And I ' l l 

probably wish to heck I was out of here and back in the boondocks somewhere. 

One thing I'm glad of, tha t I moved out of t ha t apartment before I r e t i r e d , 

because they'd have had me in Morganton or somewhere e lse in a padded c e l l . I ' d have 

been climbing the walls , and here I have plenty to do. I 've been the 

busiest the l a s t two years I 've ever been in my l i f e , and t h a t ' s being honest about i t , 

I qui t [chucklej work to play golf, and the f i r s t year I was re t i red I played 

one Wednesday afternoon. One. And i t ha sn ' t gotten any be t t e r . I'm not 

going to be s i t t i n g in the house. My wife accused, me the f i r s t two years of 

being on a clock; I ' d clock in and clock out, t h i s so r t of th ing . But I'm 

doing what I want to do. And I'm s t i l l staying involved with the c red i t union, 

because I'm recognized there , and, well , I think i t ' s s e l f i sh , because I'm 

looking a t what I accumulated, too, and what I can do to help people. And 

the c red i t union i s for people who c a n ' t . . . , I t ' s not t r ue—i t was seven 

or eight years ago—that ' s i t ' s for people who can ' t get loans somewhere e l s e . 

But by gol ly, we're beating the banks these days, and the banks are screaming, 
/but s t i l l , 

too . We parlayed $20,000;'the local union put up the f i r s t $20,000 and started 

a t reasury and paid shares . And l a s t month, a million and almost $300,000 in 

asse ts in almost ten years . So there i s some people putt ing some money i n , and 
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we're making c a p i t a l i s t s out of a few of them. And they were bad c red i t r i s k s 

a t one point . This gives you a l i t t l e b i t of sa t i s fac t ion . I t ' s j u s t l ike 

doing a l i t t l e b i t here. I s i t back and watch and t a lk about my own pension— 

I 've got i t laying in there on my desk—and Social Security, Actually, I'm 

going to take the time one day and go t o the phone book, and I'm going to 

look up how many widows there are in t h i s town. You can go up and down the 

s t r e e t s , and by gol ly , you might find one couple, but they ' re on up in years . 

You're ge t t ing now in the past three years some young couples who are buying 

and moving back i n . That 's changing, but these are widows who are l iv ing on 

some par t of Alcoa pension, plus Social Security, And by some standards, some 

of them are f a i r l y well off. You've got nothing but a l i t t l e Social Security 

check coming i n , they ' re damn well off. This a l l goes back t o some of the 

history of the local union. It's a little personal satisfaction you get out 

of it, I'll say. All I did was just stay at home and borrowed $300 on insurance 

to make it through the strike, and I got it paid back. I didn't miss it, and 

we had some people didn't want to go back to work, raised hell because they 

had to go back to work when the strike was settled. It is a unique town, and 

if you ever find out the answer . . . 

RH:{ Laughter] 

DRYE; . . . I would cer ta in ly l ike to be clued in as to what made t h i s 

town. I t was the people tha t made t h i s loca l union. And there were management 

people tha t were behind us over 100 percent. And. t h a t ' s a l l you can be, 

but there was no way they could say i t publ icly. 

GH; I t was par t of loca l management behind you? 

DRYE; They were behind i t , because they recognized. . . . There was a 

l i t t l e b i t of se l f i sh thing. "If they get something, we're going 

to get something." I t ' s t r u e . 
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pushed them. This i s something tha t Alcoa has done, and i t ' s beginning to 

show, too, in h i r ing engineers and t h i s so r t of th ing. They t r y to hire new 

ones a t a salary l e s s than what they've been hir ing previous years . And by gol ly , 

they've gotten to the point now, they don ' t barely touch the labor ra te a t job 

grade I and I I , And you can ' t get top-grade engineers tha t way. If you get 

them, they won't s tay here. If they ' re good ca l iber and got the moxie, why, 

bang, they go somewhere e lse in a year or two. You don ' t have too many good ones(?) , 

and I think t h i s i s a l l part of the same. 

RH; Let me jus t t r y t h i s theory out on you and see how you think of i t . 

What impresses me i s how much Alcoa seems a part of the natural s e t t i n g , an 

i n s t i t u t i o n almost as permanent as the r i ve r the re . Of course, the r i ve r i s 

the reason why Alcoa came, and so they s i t side by s ide , again, another image 

to me tha t i s very meaningful. That both of these i n s t i t u t i o n s are things tha t 

almost determine the people 's psyches, the organic re la t ionship of what governs 

t h i s area, the two of those things together. And the r ive r was there f i r s t , 

and the industry came because of the r i v e r , and then the people came to both 

of those places tha t were both there . Most of the people who came had some 

attachment, and the industry did not d i s tu rb t h e i r land. They could maintain 

an attachment to land. As you say, you have a garden, and you f ight your 

beetles in your garden, and you t r y to get your planting when i t doesn ' t r a in . 

But nonetheless, you've s t i l l been involved with working in t h i s heavy 

indus t r i a l development, and both of these things kind of govern your existence, 

an attachment to land, also an attachment to t h i s industry. And i t ' s been a 

good industry which has given people good wages with benefi ts , has accepted 

the presence of a union, has worked along with i t in a way t h a t ' s benefitted 

both them and the workers. So i t ' s been kind of a. . . , 

DRYE: A jo in t e f fo r t . 
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RH* A joint effort and a group of forces that came together in one place 

to make people in control of their lives, have enough money to live the kind 

of lives that they'd like to have, while at the same time not disturbing their 

atmosphere, their environment, and not disturbing their ties to their land and 

their ability to be able to garden and to go fishing, to go swimming, to go 

hunting, perhaps, in the mountains. It's accommodated both, perhaps, the 

rural traditions in which they grew up and also the need to be in the present-

day moneyed economy. And the union, of course, is one of the significant 

features in that, but it's also that Alcoa has become sort of a permanent 

part of people's psyches here. It's almost as natural as the river. 

DRYE: Yes, it is. I have tried in my own mind to analyze that relationship 

through the years, and I think perhaps when I interrupted and said it's a joint 

effort. . . . And this probably goes back to management, perhaps not plant 

manager level but higher than that. But somewhere in the top management 

leadership in Alcoa there's been this concept of good, faithful employees 

being compensated. And if I had to say it bluntly, one thing that the 

union can be proud of is that we nudged them along a little faster than they 

probably would come. There has been—and this has to be true—a wonderful 

relationship between plant management in Badin and the local union officers. 

I think the good. Lord has acted to send their managers, and the 

good Lord has let the rank and file elect the person for the time. I can 

take that list and almost spell that out. There was * time when the hard-nosed 

person came along, needed in that area. Maybe the good Lord waved a stick, 

and the people said, "Well, we'd better get. . . . " And then there was a time 

when a pacifist attitude, "Just take it easy for a while." And he came along 

after I did. But the summary, I think, is we were both headed the same 

direction, as far as the employees of Alcoa. We used different tactics. 
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The people wanted to do for themselves, and t h i s i s an independent s t reak , 

I think, and therefore they reached out and took in the union as something 

tha t can speak for the group, and i t ' s been good for Alcoa. They' l l t e l l you 

t h a t . They would ra ther deal with one person than 700-something, because i t ' s 

a channel i n t o . . . . Of course, t h e r e ' s always one who's going to upset 

things for management and the union, too. We've had our f a u l t s , and we've had 

our faul ty people. I can ' t say tha t Alcoa has had tha t philosophy a l l these 

years. The employees had to make Alcoa what i t i s today. But the Badin plant 

stands apart from any other loca t ion . I could t e l l you some horror s t o r i e s 

about what we've battled in our own meetings before we meet management to 

t a lk i t over. There's been some screwballs up the re , but then you had the 

average, the overa l l group with leve l heads. "Now look, t h i s i s not the 

r igh t thing for the people, and t h i s i s not what we're going to do ." We've 

had to almost t i e and gag and bind people on our side of the t a b l e . And t h e r e ' s 

times in meetings tha t I 've been with Alcoa management, in grievance meetings 

and j u s t discussion of problems in the p lant , tha t you couldn' t t e l l who was 

on what side of the t a b l e . And t h i s i s unique within i t s e l f . The nature 

of bargaining s ta r ted changing in the ea r ly f i f t i e s , very soon a f t e r I 

entered of f ice . They were down to ea r th , fact for f ac t , not pounding on the 

table and t h i s so r t of th ing. I t changed. And in the period before then, 

t h a t ' s the only way you got through: beat on the table.And t h a t ' s not the way 

to get a t t en t ion . And i f Badin i s unique, t h a t ' s the people. I t ' s not the 

people who represented them. I d i d n ' t have any par t of i t ; I had the people 

behind me, the majority of the people, in everything I attempted, and I think 

t h a t ' s been true overa l l . That 's why I say we were headed the same d i r ec t ion . 

We used di f ferent t a c t i c s , went a d i f ferent route , to get the re , to accomplish i t . 

I think t h a t ' s why probably somewhere you have t o kni t tha t e f fo r t together, the 
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jo in t management-labor r e l a t ions sor t of th ing. But I do know tha t somewhere a t Alcoa 

i n j tha t human re l a t ions thing, tha t t h e r e ' s been some heads chopped pre t ty 

hard here in t h i s p lant , because of things tha t I attempted to do and some 

things tha t I attempted to get straightened out here, and I know they were 

straightened out, because these people were out of l i n e . They were creat ing 

a problem down here on the plant l eve l , within the department. And 

in every case, they d i d n ' t f i t the policy. Now where tha t s t a r t ed , I 

don ' t know. I could not put my finger on i t . But t h i s i n t e r r e l a t i on thing 

started changing in the ear ly f i f t i e s , and the level-headed discussion. 

Not r i gh t , and you'd be t te r have some reasons. Now you show Alcoa what i s 

r i gh t , and. more times than not they go along with i t . I t might take a 

l i t t l e longer sometimes. 

GH « Would you say tha t the company or management wasn't exactly 

aggressive in i t s approach to improving the conditions of workers, but tha t 

they were responsive? 

DRYE; They've been responsive a l l through the years . 

GH : Which i s r e a l l y d i f ferent from a l o t of other companies. 

DRYE: And the '56 s t r i k e . Now i t wasn't t rue in 1949, the ten-week job. 

That was a bellwether, no question about t h a t . I t was taking place 

everywhere, not j u s t in Badin, but every industry had within a two-year 

period the same b a t t l e , In '56 there was the a t t i t ude to avert a s t r i k e , 

on the local l eve l . But top management had a d i f fe ren t a t t i t u d e . And here 

the personnel department a t the Pittsburgh leve l who packed up and went home. 

Maybe Spike Turner d i d n ' t know tha t was going on; t h i s i s a decision they 

made by themselves. We'll never know what happened the next day. But t h e r e ' s 

been tha t underlying a t t i tude of what 's best for the people. 

And t h a t ' s in t h e i r negotiat ions and t h e i r r e l a t ions out of the plant and 
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the a t t i t ude of the workers in get t ing the job done, and in satisfied, employees. 

If you sa t i s fy f i f ty percent and one, you're in good shape. [Chuckle j That 's true 

of about everything. I never t r y to sa t i s fy any more than f i f t y percent and 

one. Be sure you've got tha t one, because they might have a vote. And I think 

tha t through the years, in my time of recognizing and learning and get t ing an 

education myself a f t e r I got out of school, a t times you get resent fu l , but 

then you had t o go back and s e t t l e i t the next day. Get up and walk out of 

the conference; I did tha t one time. Because the best thing I ever did(?) 

was the personnel d i r ec to r . I d i d n ' t go in there t o s t a r t cussing and. r a i s ing 

h e l l . I had a problem, and i t was t h e i r problem. 

and I got up and walked, out . "When you get ready to t a l k sense, I ' l l come 

back." 

RH: You know, another thing McAlister said to me tha t time when I talked 

to him, he said tha t again,"People in Badin come to me and they say, 'Well, why 

don ' t you hi re my son?' "Why don ' t you hire my grandson?" I 've got t h i s niece 

here who needs a j o b . ' " And he says he doesn ' t l ike to do tha t because t h a t ' s 

s t i l l the paternal , family system. And he wants to get away from t h a t , because 

t h i s i s n ' t a company town, and Alcoa doesn ' t go along those paternal ways. 

I s tha t another way in which you think i t ' s a kind of a front for cut t ing the 

t i e s with t h i s town and divest ing i t s e l f of responsib i l i ty? 

DRYE: I t ' s a f ront , because tha t kind of a paternal a t t i t u d e , t ha t concept, 

has bsen out of date for a t l e a s t twenty years, as far as i t applied to Badin, 

to my knowledge. Maybe the managements in the Badin plant used i t as a hedge 

to d iver t employees away. They diverted i t through the loca l union. I t might 

have been tha t they wanted l e s s confusion, l e s s people to have to deal with, 

and t h i s going through. I think, in my opinion, he should be l e s s concerned, 

or anybody in the p lant , about any a t t i t ude such as t h a t . That 's way down 
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below h i s l eve l . And he ' s ni tpicking and wasting h is time for the rea l job 

h e ' s doing when he gets involved, in tha t l eve l . There again, I could say 

some things about management. They've had a middle-of-the-roader in the 

period here of the l a s t ten years. I t should have been a forceful person. 

Take i t by the horns, and. l e t ' s go with the union on t h i s th ing. I t ' s 

unfortunate tha t death had to bring i t about, but t h a t ' s what happened. 

And I think the man wasn't ready for the job he had to do. I had to do the 

same thing, and the Jus t ice Department said , "You implement t h i s or e l s e . " 

You don ' t s i t on i t for three years t i l l you drop dead, and then somebody 

else has to take i t over, because i t ' s impossible to undo the damage t h a t ' s 

already done. Rather than take the time to implement i t . This i s , I say, 

a weak management person, and we've had a couple of weak union people, too. 

But the membership w i l l , . . . We've got a l i t t l e be t t e r whack a t i t , you 

know. We can always vote in the next e lec t ion three years from now and vote 

him out. You know, t h a t ' s the way. . . . [ Chuckle] Ours works be t t e r than 

the i r s does, though, in tha t respect . I wouldn't want to attempt to put a 

rea l serious analyzation on McAlister, because t h e r e ' s too many " i f f y ' s . " 

And h i s t a c t i c s , h i s methods of going and accomplishing whatever h e ' s come 

down. . . . And. I'm not 100 percent sold on what he was sent here to do. 

The only thing tha t shows i s se l l ing off the property. That could have been 

done without him being here. The order comes out, and you get the r igh t 

person, pick a person over a t the property department. But there again, h e ' s 

doing chuckle' h i s lawyer's job, in my opinion. That 's j u s t put t ing i t as 

frankly as I know how to say i t . This i s my opinion. That 's one thing I 

d i d n ' t allow in the rank and f i l e the re . If you had something tha t was 

management l eve l , the second-step l eve l , you d i d n ' t go in over there and 

ta lk to the personnel d i r ec to r ; you had t o do i t through me. I t was nul l and 
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void, anything you said or agreed to or was told you; the he l l with i t . That 

wasn't done through t h i s loca l union. I t takes a while to channel i t , but 

people learned in a hurry. 

GH: Does i t have anything to do with who made up the ranks of 

management? Where do they come from? Were they par t of the community? 

DRYE* No works manager t h a t ' s ever been here came out of the loca l p lan t . 

Every one channeled out of the Pittsburgh of f ice . I can understand i t , but I 
//probably says?) 

can see perhaps. . . • This i s probably as sad as what I said about a ten-year 

plan, a ten-year program. Every single man who's on the way up goes in to the 

Pittsburgh of f ice , and he spends a minimum of a year, and more times than not 

two years, in the Pittsburgh office before he ' s sent out as a works manager. 

Why, i f h e ' s got the ab i l i t y? Are you indoctr inat ing? 

r n 
RH* I Laughter | 
DRYE: Huh? This is a good question. 

RH; Yes, they sure are. 

DRYE: Are you indoctr inat ing him? I f you agree tha t yes, you a re , now 

what d i rec t ion are you indoctrinating? Which d i rec t ion did i t t ake : to 

implement the policy t h a t ' s been in existence for t h i r t y years, or to change i t ? 

Did i t take tha t long to spe l l i t out to him? Can he read wri t ing, as the saying 

goes? But in every single case, the management person goes through tha t 

Pittsburgh of f ice . Perhaps t h i s i s i t ; maybe they don ' t t r u s t t h e i r own 

judgment. Well. . . . j Laughter] 

RH: Maybe i t ' s because they r e a l l y want to impress on tha t person, 

"You're spending two years here get t ing ready for what your next job i s , and 

you damn be t te r well do what we" . . • 

GH; Bat I think i t ' s f a i r l y sub t l e . I mean i t ' s a soc ia l iza t ion 

process, to some extent . 
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RH; Well-1-1-1 . . . 

DRYE: To pick a man up out of a p lant , l i ke the Badin p lant . And i t ' s 

happened. There was one man tha t went there and he stayed there two years, 

and they sent him out to Wanatchee(?), and he wasn't there ninety days t i l l 

he was back in the Pittsburgh of f ice . The next thing they'd put him back 

in here and. canned him; t h a t ' s what i t amounted t o . He had a t i t l e , but 

he d i d n ' t have but about three years to go to ret i rement , so he walked, around, 

the plant and saw nothing. And somebody d i d n ' t recognize the man's a b i l i t y , 

o r they. . , . J Laughter] He had a l o t on the bal l from the standpoint of an 

engineer or a management person. He had a h e l l of a l o t on the b a l l , he was 

a smart man, but somewhere they broke tha t man from the time he l e f t Badin 

u n t i l he got back. But t h i s i s j u s t one i so la ted ins tance . 

RH; Thinking back to what you were saying about your pol ic ies and 

res t ruc tur ing the l i n e s of j progression I, and. the in tegra t ion problems you 

had to deal with during the f i f t i e s , i t reminds me of the—I guess i t was 

set t led out of court—charges tha t Clyde Cook brought against Alcoa for 

the back wages tha t were paid to people who had been discriminated agains t . 

What kind of an effect did tha t have? 

DRYE; None. Clyde Cook mentioned. . . . I'm mentioned in t h a t s u i t , 

and I wasn't even a union member myself a t tha t point . I could not have 

been a union off icer ; I wasn't even a union member a t t h i s point . 

RH: You mean he claimed tha t you were a union officer? 

DRYE: I checked the record myself. The president asked me to go , 

because I knew more about what tha t old record was than anybody e l s e . And 

Clyde Cook was never a union member. 

RH; He was never a union member? 

DRYE: Not according t o the card records, and t h i s was supplied by the 

management. 
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just personal charges that he. . . . A class action, I guess. I mean after 

he brought . . . 

DRYE; That was a class action, is the right word. 

RH; After he brought charges, then other people joined, in the suit, and 

he's got that list of 200 . . . 

DRYE: And you know, I do not to this day know what the disposition of 

that case was? I think Alcoa paid him off just to keep from going any further 

with it, and I think this was by agreement. 

RH; Out of court, yes. 

DRYE: I can ' t prove i t , but i t seemed to me tha t t h a t ' s where i t should have 

gone. I could have gotten involved., but there was no point , and I had 

nothing to submit e i t he r way, against him. But I could have said what our records 

showed. Had the judge subpoenaed them, we'd have had. to take them, but 

otherwise, unh-uh. We don ' t l e t them look a t our records any more than we 

l e t , . . . Now some records are public knowledge, such as the recording 

s ec r e t a ry ' s . There's nothing secre t about t h a t . But t h a t ' s as far as i t goes. 

How we implemented those act ions i s something e l s e ; t h a t ' s i n t e rna l work. 

But I have the opinion tha t Clyde was an opportunist a t tha t point . I'm 

saying i t frankly. He was used by other people to make t h i s ac t ion . 

RH: He was used, by other people? 

DRYE: Yes. That 's my fee l ing . 

RH; Why, because h is . . . 

DRYE; He did not have a case. He was not a union member. He never 

applied. Now whatever Floyd Gulp might have told him as department head 

in the construction department. . , . But what Clyde says h e ' s t e l l i n g -

h e ' s s t i l l a l i v e , and he d i d n ' t subpoena him or even mention him—that he was 

promised a brickmason's job. There's nothing in the record tha t the job was 
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posted or anywhere back at that point that he made application for a brickmason 

job. And promises by management people . . . 

I 2nd of interview 
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